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From a Carte de Visit by  Fletcher Moor. 
In 1824, Mr W.H. Surman had leased Bonchurch Farm and its glebe land, previously occupied by the Rector Archdeacon Justly Hill, another son of Charles Fitzmaurice Hill.  Mr Surman had built a mansion on the site which he called East Dene, designed by an architect called Samuel Beazley, 1786-1851. Surman was a zealous Catholic and eventually left the Island to become a monk in Rome leaving us the aged wooden cross that he presented to the parish and still to be seen in the Old Church. Carrigdene Farm remained as a small farm to the east of the house.  Captain Swinburne took over the lease in 1837 and later, when he was promoted to Admiral, bought the freehold. The poet. Algernon Charles Swinburne grew up there.
East Dene was occupied in 1865 by Mr and Mrs John Snowdon Henry.  He was a wealthy business man and spent £90,000 on the house and gardens, building the Lodge and the Turret House as a coach house and stables.  At this time there was still evidence in the garden, on the edge of the cliff, of a Roman fort which has now been destroyed by cliff erosion. Nearby is Monks Bay where the monks of Lyra in France landed to collect the tithes.
East Dene became a Benedictine convent in 1904. ‘The Convent of the Sacred Heart’ housed nuns from Liege in France and they established a finishing school for girls, offering a ‘liberal education’. Mrs Carson, from the Land Army, took over as the head gardener at East Dene and she also ran Carrigdene Farm which was part of the estate for food production with the help of German prisoners of war. 

After the Second World War in 1949, the nuns left East Dene which became a holiday centre for the Workers’ Travel Association later called the Galleon Trust. In 1979 it was sold to Joseph Allnatt Ltd. and since then it has been used as an activity centre for children on holiday from all over Europe.

